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PART |
ITEM1. BUSINESS
Background

Clearfield, Inc. (“Clearfield” or the “Company”jormerly APA Enterprises, Inc., is a Minnesota argiion which was founded in 1979. (
corporate headquarters are located at 5480 Nathame LNorth, Suite 120, Plymouth, MN 55442, and oorperate website

www.clearfieldconnection.com The information available on our website is pait of this Report. You can access, free of ahaogr filing:
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, inoweéur annual report on Form 10-K, our quartedparts on Form 1@, current repor
on Form 8-K and any other amendments to those t®pbrough the “About Clearfield” link at our wetes or at the Commissios'website ¢

WWW.SeC.goVv.

Description of Business

Clearfield, Inc. manufactures, markets and sellsead-toend fiber management and enclosure platform thasamates, distributes a
protects fiber as it moves from the inside planttte outside plant and all the way to the homejnass and cell site. The Company
extended this product line with a fiber deliverpgdrm of optical cable, connectors and microdbat telivers fiber to environments previot
not economically or environmentally viable. Then@pany has successfully established itself as wewalded supplier to its target marke
broadband service providers, including independecdl exchange carriers (telephone), multiple senoperators (cable), wireless ser
providers, non-traditional providers and municipalned utilities. Clearfield has expanded its peidofferings and broadened its custo
base during the last five years.

By aligning its in-house engineering and technicalwledge alongside its customengeds, the Company has been able to develop, das
and enhance products from design through productiomal build and assembly is completed at Cle&d® plant in Plymouth, Minnesota w
manufacturing support from a network of domestid giobal manufacturing partners. Clearfield spieméa in producing these products
both a quickiurn and scheduled delivery basis. The Companyoglsm@ hybrid sales model with some sales madethjirecthe customer, sor
made through two-tier distribution partners and s@ales through original equipment suppliers winape label its products.

Products

Clearview Cassette

The Clearview™ Cassette, a patented technologgheignain building block of the Compasyproduct platform. The value of the build
block approach is that Clearfield is the only compto provide the needs of every leg of the telemamications network with a single build
block architecture, reducing the customest of deployment by reducing labor costs assediaith training and reducing inventory carry
costs.

Clearview Classic and Clearview Blu€learview Classic and Clearview Blue, is a systdrfive parts that nest together in the cassett®ir
housing to support a wide range of applicationartsPcan be added or removed as needed to supgmorérivironment in which it
deployed. Clearview Blue, while fully compatiblétivClearview Classic, is designed for the utmastriodularity and scalability. It buil
upon the Clearview Classic by offering a smalletjfoint and integrated slack storage and splicimgfionality.




Clearview xPAK:Engineered to land small port count fiber termiorasi and optical components, the patented xPAK iigpsk flat an
unassembled. Following simple pictorial user mmstions, a technician will assemble the device tatam his field requirements at

installation site. Application environments incdudell backhaul, business class service delivery, node segtient fiber exhaust scenari
utility sub-stations or fiber-to-the-desk deployrmen

Connectivity and Optical Components

The Clearview system consolidates, distributesmntkcts fibers as they move from the inside plarthe home and business. These fiber
either connectorized directly for cabledable deployment or are connectorized onto opticaiponents that may amplify or divide the sig
they carry. We provide products that meet a custantable-to-cable deployment or optical compomesds.

Cable-to-Cable DeploymenEiber Deep is a class of fiber assemblies that guaranteesipeaince at .2dB insertion lossuly half that of the
industry standard. This metric extends the lirdslbudget effectively, extending the distance upbith fiber can be deployed. In additi
this 2dB improvement in optical budget reduces gossmsumption by 10%. The power savings, multiplyy even a small thousand hc
network, is a significant contribution to a comntyts “go-green” efforts.

Optical Components: Clearfield packages optical components for sigrmipling, splitting, termination, multiplexing, maltiplexing an
attenuation for a seamless integration withinitteif management platform. This valadded packaging allows the customer to source &
single supplier and reduces space requirements. pftducts are built and tested to meet the ss$tiételustry standards ensuring custor
trouble-free performance in extreme outside planfrenments.

FieldSmart

Utilizing the Clearview Cassette and xPAK as buitgblocks, FieldSmart is a series of panels, cabirveall boxes and other enclosures
house the Clearview components to provide a cangistesign from the inside plant of the telco’sritcal office” or cable television’s “head-
end”, all the way through the outside plant to the acoegwork and through to the home. At each ledhefrietwork, the FieldSmart platfo
delivers a modular and scalable architecture tHatva the service provider to align their capit@jugoment expenditures alongside t
subscriber revenues.

Inside Plant: The FieldSmart Fiber Crossover Distribution 8yst(FXDS) and high density FieldSmart FxHD providesnplete fibe
management modularity and scalability across ther fnetwork. Using the Clearview building blockpapach, each fiber management eler
provides modularity of physical fiber protectiontime environment in which it is placed. Easily figared for initial placement and scal
from 12-ports to a full rack of 1728erts, the FieldSmart FXDS requires only four uridplocks to configure initial deployment. The udesr
places what is needed on the frame as subscrikerrédes dictate. The FxHD is an integrated fim@nagement solution delivered via
Clearview Blue Cassette. With instant accessltoaaisettes, adapters, and jumpers, the framesigrosl as a front access frame, meanir
installation is done from one side of the framevjting the option to reclaim the aisle space regplifior frame solutions that require rear ac
— and to use that space for other equipment or rMframaes. The FxHD can be placed against a wallg dagdata center clocatior
environments, or back to back.

Outside Plant: The FieldSmart Fiber Scalability Center (FSChisnodular and scalable outside plant cabinet thavs rollout of FTTF
services by communication service providers witheuarge initial expense. Each outside plant cathétores feeder and distribution spli
splitters, connectors and slack cable neatly amdpeatly, utilizing fieldtested designs to maximize bend radius protectionnector acces
ease of cable routing and physical protection,eyeiminimizing the risk of fiber damage. The FS©Gduct, with the Clearview cassette a
heart, has been designed to scale with the applicahvironment as demand requires and to redug&sdurn-up time for the end-user.




Access NetworlFieldSmart Fiber Delivery Point (FDP) is a seriégemclosure systems that incorporates the deligéfiper connectivity to th
neighborhood or business district in the most effgetive footprint possible. This family of wattount enclosures provides 12 to 144 por
connectivity for multidwelling unit fiber deployments, fiber demarcati@gcurity systems (CCTV), telecommunications rooeeds an
horizontal/intermediate cross-connects.

Access Networ: FieldSmart Small Count Delivery (SCD) is a sené®nclosure systems that are packaged to makinusmall count fibe
more cost-effective and efficient than previousipught possible. This family of wathount enclosures, panels and drop cable casesdg
up to 12 ports of connectivity when fiber managetnencritical but higheount density is required. The FieldSmart SCDaigjéted fc
application environments such as cell backhauliness class service delivery, node segmentatibar Bxhaust in a field pedestal, sstatior
turn-up or fiber-to-the-desk deployment.

FieldShield

FieldShieldis a patenpending fiber delivery method aimed at reducingabst of broadband deployment. FieldShield takdsistry standa
glass and makes it easier and less expensive t@link starts by teaming a ruggedized microdilcbugh which a flexible fiber cable
placed. FieldShield starts with a Ruggedized btact designed to support all aerial, direct baryd inside plant “last milefieeds. Creat
from the most rugged HDPE polymers, FieldShield i¥iitict is strong enough to be placed using trathifionethods of boring and plowil
leveraging existing conduit placement equipmentyels as newer, less disruptive technologies scimi@ro trenching or saw cutting.

FieldShield Pushable Fiber easily slips throughrtheroduct's smooth inner wall. Utilizing bentsensitive glass, FieldShield Pushable F
is available in a variety of fiber counts: 1 to fit®rs in a 3mm jacket and up to 24 fibers in a 4jaoket. Available in bulk reels or fact
terminated, FieldShield offers total installatidexibility. FieldShield Pushable Fiber can be pagiby hand up to 100 feet or to distances |
500 feet for direct bury applications and 300 fieetplenum and riser environments with the usehefFieldShield Assist Module, Clearfie¢d’
cordless drill-driven machine. A factory ptennectorized FieldShield Pushable Connector editem costly labor in the field and pres
reliable, consistent and guaranteed performancegaldth lower installation costs. After being iakéd in the microduct, the sligsistar
protective housing is removed and the connectopstagether - all in seconds, providing a costetiife, techfriendly means of installir
optical fiber without jeopardizing fiber protection

The FieldShield Multiport SmarTerminal extends tieach of FieldShield optical fiber to the hardemenector marketplace. Teamin
FieldShield Pushable Connector with a field-instalié, toolless smart housing that provides a water tight gdeateases installation ¢
maintenance time, while providing superior durapitind reliability in the drop segment of the netivoThese new solutions, FieldShi
Hardened Connectors and the FieldShield Multipona8& erminal, bring together the advantages of hedeconnector technology with
ease of use and cost reductions associated witiaplesfiber.

CraftSmart
CraftSmartis a full line of optical protection field enclogs; extending Clearfield presence in the fiber atigu The CraftSmart Fib

Protection Pedestals (FPP) and CraftSmart Fibaeétron Vaults (FPV) are integrated solutions, mjited to house FieldSmart products a
last mile access point of the network in above-gradbelow-grade installations.




CraftSmart aims to optimize fiber protection andragie while ensuring industry standards. Utilizimgthods of sealing and belayads
protection, along with Clearfield innovation, Ci&fart is a turn-key solution for the deploymenpassive optics from the central office/heac
end to the customer premise.

Cable Assemblies

Clearfield manufactures high quality fiber and ceppssemblies with an industry-standard or custespecified configuration. Industry-
standard assemblies built include but are not éichtb: single mode fiber, multimode fiber, mdibier, CATV node assembly, DS1 Telco, D
(734/735) coax, Category 5e and 6, SCSI, Token ,Ramgl V.35. In addition, Clearfiels’engineering services team works alongsidi
engineering design departments of our OEM custorttedesign and manufacture custom solutions foh etthebox as well as netwo
connectivity assemblies specific to that customper&duct line.

Markets

FTTP

Fiber to the Premise (also called Fiber to the Hoim@ means of delivering the highest possiblell®f bandwidth directly to the user. 1
Companys sales and marketing efforts have principally bileensed on the U.S., with investments in Canadhthe Caribbean regions ad
in the last year.

FTTB
Fiber to the Business is the rapid expansion ddrfibervices, principally by multiple service (cabi¥) operators to penetrate the busil
marketplace.

FTT-Cell site
Fiber to the Cell site is the trend in which wisseservice providers are f@cusing their efforts from building towers for @rage to enhancil

their coverage for bandwidth. Fiber is the medinchoice for their upgrade. Currently, a very Brparcentage of these cell sites are se
by fiber.

DAS

A distributedantenna system, or DAS, is a network of spatialyasated antenna nodes connected to a common sear@dransport mediu
that provides wireless service within a geograjginga or structure. DAS antenna elevations arerghyat or below the clutter level and n
installations are compact. Fiber may be used ¢&Hrul data from the antenna.

Build to Print
In addition to a proprietary product line desigriedthe broadband service provider marketplaceadikld provides contract manufactur
services for original equipment manufacturers neqgicopper and fiber cable assemblies built tar thgecification .

Competition

Competitors to the FieldSmart product lines includet are not limited to, Corning Cabling Systenms,., OFS (Furukawa Electric No
America, Inc.), AFL Telecommunications (a subsidiaf Fujikura Ltd.), Fujikura Ltd., Alcatel, Inc., and TE Connectivity, Inc. (formefTyca
Electronics). Competitors to the CraftSmart produs include Emerson Network Power, a subsidigrfEmerson Electric Co., and Chal
Industries, Ltd. Competitors to FieldShield inautirnco Duraline and M2FX. Nearly all of thesarfs are substantially larger than Clearl
and as a result may be able to procure pricingnfaressary components and labor at much lower pricksarfield believes that it ha:
competitive advantage with customers who can leyethe cost savings the Clearview Cassette canderand those who require quitkmn,
highperformance customized products, and that it @atpetitive disadvantage with customers who prialbypseek large volume commaoc
products.




Sources of Materials and Outsourced Labor

Numerous purchased materials, components, and &eoused in the manufacturing of the Com|'s products. Most of these are rea
available from multiple suppliers. However, son@mponents and outsourced labor are purchased fraingée or a limited number
suppliers. The loss of access to some componetoatsourced labor could have an adverse effeaciusrability to deliver products or
timely basis and on our financial performance.

Major Customers

Customers A and B comprised approximately 23% &%, Iespectively, of net sales for the fiscal yeraded September 30, 2013. Custc
B comprised approximately 22% of total sales foe fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. Additiph&@ustomer A accounted 1
approximately 57% of accounts receivable at Sepeerdd, 2013.

Patents and Trademarks

As of September 30, 2013, we had four patents gdaand four pending patent applications pendinglénand outside the United States.
have also developed and are using trademarks god o market and promote our products, includifep@ield®, Clearview® , FieldSmar
®, FieldShield, and CraftSmaéft

Backlog

Backlog reflects purchase order commitments for puaducts received from customers that have ydvetdfulfilled. Backlog orders a
generally shipped within three months. The Comphagt a backlog of $8,638,000 and $2,647,000 aseptetnber 30, 2013 and 20
respectively.

Seasonality

We are affected by the seasonal trends in the indssve serve. We typically experience sequédntialver sales in our first and second fit
year quarters, primarily due to customer budgetesyaeployment schedules, some customer geogedptuncentrations as well as stanc
vacation and holiday calendars. Sales usuallyhraageasonal peak in our third and fourth fiscalrtpus.

Product Development

Product development for Clearfietd’product line program has been conducted intgrn&lle believe that the communication indu
environment is constantly evolving and our sucakgsends on our ability to anticipate and responthése changes. Our focus is to anz
the environment and technology and work to devglogmucts that simplify our customersusiness by developing innovative high qui
products utilizing modular design wherever possilR@search and development are reflected in §el@eneral & Administrative expen:
and are not material to the overall expense total.

Employees

As of September 30, 2013, the Company had 179tifu#- employees. We also have several paré employees and indepenc
contractors. None of our employees are covereahlgycollective bargaining agreement. We beliewesmuployee relations to be good.




Segment Reporting

The Company operates in a single reportable segment

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The impact and the timing of the impact of the Anigan Recovery and Reinvestment Act on our businassuncertain.

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (the RAR), widely known as the “Stimulus Bill,ivas enacted in February 2009. The AF
allocates $7.2 billion in grants, loans and loamargatees for broadband/wireless initiatives foarumserved and underserved geograg
across the country, with these initiatives adméristl by several federal agencies. This fundirey&lable to a wide variety of organizatic
including our customers and prospective customerqurchase and implement network infrastructuré services to improve broadb:
coverage. As part of the criteria establishedHsy federal agencies administering these programespitojects to be funded through the
federal stimulus plan must be approved by the stastates in which the projects will be located.

All ARRA funding for these broadband/wireless iaftves was allocated to awarded applicants pridhécstart of this fiscal year. The majo
of these projects were nearing completion by thieddtiscal year 2013.

National Broadband Pla’'s transitioning from the USF to the CAF program masause our customers to evaluate their businessrafpens
and delay purchases.

In October of 2011, the FCC approved the NationalaBband Plan which called for the restructuringhaf longstanding USF (Univers
Service Fund). A key element of this program ie tlansition out of the USF program, which awards gperating subsidy
telecommunications companies providing serviceighdost serving areas, to the Connect America Fund={Q¢hich would provide a capi
expenditure subsidy for the build-out of the coutstibroadband network. In addition, other univéservice and intecarrier compensatic
reforms scheduled to begin in the coming years @&lithinate subsidies that carriers have traditiynadlied upon to support service in high-
cost, rural areas. We cannot be assured to whetethese program changes will impact demand diompooducts, our results of operation
the timing of purchases by customers.

A significant percentage of our sales in the lastd fiscal years have been made to a small numbecwusftomers, and the loss of these m:
customers would adversely affect us.

In fiscal year 2013, Customers A and B comprisedraxdmately 23% and 19%, respectively, of totalesal Additionally, Customer
comprised approximately 22% of total sales forfiseal year ended September 30, 2012. These cessopurchase our products from tim
time through purchase orders and we do not haveagreement that guarantees future purchases bgfahgse major customers. The los
any one or more of these customers, the substaatattion, delay or cancellation in orders frony anch customer or our inability to coll
the accounts receivable from these customers, ¢@ud a material adverse effect on our businessndial position and results of operations.

Intense competition in our industry may result irripe reductions, lower gross profits and loss of rket share.

Competition in the telecommunications equipment aad/ices industry is intense. Our competitors rhaye or could develop or acqt
marketing, financial, development and personne&ugses that exceed ours. Our ability to competeessfully will depend on whether we

continue to advance the technology of our prodacts develop new products, the acceptance of owtupt® among our customers

prospective customers and our ability to anticipatstomer needs in product development, as weheagprice, quality and reliability of o
products, our delivery and service capabilities aadcontrol of operating expenses.




We cannot assure you that we will be able to comeiccessfully against our current or future coitgrst Increased competition fr
manufacturers of telecommunications equipment sisoburs may result in price reductions, lower gséit margins, and increased discol
to customers and loss of market share and couldireeincreased spending by us on research and afgweht, sales and marketing
customer support.

Our results of operations could be adversely affsttby economic conditions and the effects of thesmditions on our customets
businesses.

Adverse changes in economic conditions, includirgrecent recession in the United States, havdtedsand may continue to result in loy
spending among our customers and contribute toedsed sales to our distributors and customerghéfurour business may be adver
affected by factors such as downturns in econowtiity in specific geographic areas or in the ¢elmmunications industry; social, political
labor conditions; or adverse changes in the av#ithabnd cost of capital, interest rates, tax sater regulations. These factors are beyon:
control, but may result in further decreases imdpeg among customers and softening demand fopmducts. Declines in demand for
products will adversely affect our sales. Furtterallenging economic conditions also may impa@& #bility of our customers to pay
products and services they have purchased. Asudt,reur cash flow may be negatively impacted andallowance for doubtful accounts i
write-offs of accounts receivable may increase.

Our operating results may fluctuate significantlyrdm quarter to quarter, which may make budgetingrfexpenses difficult and me
negatively affect the market price of our commormnsk.

Because many purchases by customers of our prodilate to a specific customer project, the skemta demand for our products can flucti
significantly and our ability to forecast sales @ately from quarter to quarter is limited. Thisctuation can be further affected by the |
sales cycles necessary to obtain contracts to w@ggplipment for these projects, the availabilitycapital to fund our customergtojects, an
the impact of the ARRA on customer buying patterfibese long sales cycles may result in signifiedfdrt expended with no resulting se
or sales that are not made in the anticipated guaRemand for our projects will also depend ufiom extent to which our customers
prospective customers initiate these projects hadktent to which we are selected to provide quipgnent in these projects, neither of wi
can be assured. In addition, a sharp increasenmadd could result in actual lead times longer tipaoted, and a sharp decrease in del
could result in excess stock. These factors gépeesult in fluctuations, sometimes significaim,our operating results.

Other factors that may affect our quarterly opegatesults including:

. the volume and timing of orders from and shipmémtsur customers;

. work stoppages and other developments affectingpleeations of our customers;

. the timing of and our ability to obtain new custaroentracts and the timing of revenue recognition;
. the timing of new product and service announcements

. the availability of products and services;




. market acceptance of new and enhanced versions @roducts and services;

. variations in the mix of products and services @l& s

. the utilization of our production capacity and eoyges;

. the availability and cost of key components of praducts; and

. changes in the valuation allowance relating todmferred tax assets and the resulting income tagflie or expenses.

Further, we budget our expenses based in part pectations of future sales. If sales levels iradigular quarter are lower than expected
operating results will be affected adversely.

Because of these factors, our quarterly operatsglts are difficult to predict and are likely tary in the future. If our operating results
below financial analysts’ or investors’ expectaipthe market price of our common stock may fallphly and significantly.

To compete effectively, we must continually impraasting products and introduce new products tteathieve market acceptance.

The telecommunications equipment industry is charaed by rapid technological changes, evolvindustry standards, changing ma
conditions and frequent new product and servicedhictions and enhancements. The introductionrediycts using new technologies or
adoption of new industry standards can make ouwstiegi products, or products under development, lebs@r unmarketable. In order
remain competitive and increase sales, we will rieexhticipate and adapt to these rapidly changgngnologies, enhance our existing prod
and introduce new products to address the chamgingands of our customers.

Many of our competitors have greater engineerird) @noduct development resources than we have.oédth we expect to continue to iny
substantial resources in product development detsviour efforts to achieve and maintain profiiasbiwill require us to be selective a
focused with our research and development expeeditu-urther, our existing and developmstaige products may become obsolete it
competitors introduce newer or more appealing telduies. If these technologies are patented goretary to our competitors, we may no
able to access these technologies.

If we fail to anticipate or respond in a cadfective and timely manner to technological depetents, changes in industry standarc
customer requirements, or if we experience anyifgigmt delays in product development or introdanti our business, operating results
financial condition could be affected adversely.

We may face circumstances in the future that wilkksult in impairment charges, including, but not lited to, significant goodwi
impairment charges.

If the fair value of any of our lonlived assets decreases as a result of an econtmmidavn, a downturn in the markets where we satpct:
and services or a downturn in our financial perfange and/or future outlook, we may be requiredetoprd an impairment charge on s
assets, including goodwill.

We are required to test intangible assets withfinde life periods for potential impairment annlyahnd on an interim basis if there
indicators of a potential impairment. We also @guired to evaluate amortizable intangible assetsfixed assets for impairment if there
indicators of a possible impairment. One poteritidicator of impairment is the value of our markapitalization compared to our net b
value. Significant declines in our market capi#afion could require us to record material goodauiltl other impairment charges. Impairn
charges could have a negative impact on our regfitiperations and financial position, as well agtee market price of our common stock.




We rely on singlesource suppliers, which could cause delays, incesa costs or prevent us from completing custoroatters, all of whict
could materially harm our business.

We assemble our products using materials and coempesupplied by various subcontractors and supplié/e purchase critical compone
for our products, including injected molded pamsl @onnectors from third parties, some of whomsangle- or limitedsource suppliers. If a
of our suppliers are unable to ship critical congrds, we may be unable to manufacture and shipuptedo our distributors or customers
the price of these components increases for argorear if these suppliers are unable or unwiliogleliver, we may have to find anot
source, which could result in interruptions, ina®e@ costs, delays, loss of sales and quality domtoblems.

Further, the costs to obtain certain raw materdald supplies are subject to price fluctuations,civiihay be substantial, because of gl
market demands. Many companies utilize the same meterials and supplies in the production of thgioducts as we use in ¢
products. Companies with more resources than yshmee a competitive advantage in obtaining rawenm@s and supplies due to gre
purchasing power. Some raw materials or suppliag Ibe subject to regulatory actions, which mayaféailable supplies. Furthermore,
to general economic conditions in the United Stated globally, our suppliers may experience finahdifficulties, which could result
increased delays, additional costs, or loss ofppl#r.

The termination or interruption of any of theseatienships, or the failure of these manufacturersuppliers to supply components or
materials to us on a timely basis or in sufficignantities, likely would cause us to be unable &etrorders for our products and harm
reputation and our business. Identifying and dyaly alternative suppliers would take time, inwlsignificant additional costs and may di
the production of our products. If we fail to foest our manufacturing requirements accuratehaibtd properly manage our inventory w
our contract manufacturers, we could incur addéiocosts, experience manufacturing delays and $ases. Further, if we obtain a r
supplier or assemble our product using an altereaource of supply, we may need to conduct adudititesting of our products to ensure
product meets our quality and performance standahty delays in delivery of our product to distrtbrs or customers could be extended,
our costs associated with the change in productufaaturing could increase.

The failure of our thirgsarty manufacturers to manufacture the productsispand the failure of our suppliers of componeamis raw materia
to supply us consistent with our requirements agutdity, quantity and timeliness could materidlgrm our business by causing delays, lo
sales, increases in costs and lower gross profigims

Our success depends upon adequate protection ofgaient and intellectual property rights.

Our future success depends in part upon our ptapyidechnology. We attempt to protect our prdprg technology through pater
trademarks, copyrights and trade secrets. Howekiese legal means afford us only limited protecémd may not adequately protect
rights or remedies to gain or keep any advantagemay have over our competitors. Accordingly, @armot predict whether these protect
will be adequate, or whether our competitors wélVelop similar technology independently, withowdlating our proprietary rights.

Our competitors, who may have or could developoguae significant resources, may make substaimvastments in competing technolog
or may apply for and obtain patents that will pretyéimit, or interfere with our ability to manufage or market our products. Further, althc
we do not believe that any of our products infritige rights of others, third parties may in theufatclaim, our products infringe on their rig
and these third parties may assert infringemeinnslagainst us in the future.




We may litigate to enforce patents issued to ustarmtbfend against claimed infringement of the tSghf others or to determine the owners
scope, or validity of our proprietary rights ane tiights of others. Any claim of infringement agstius could involve significant liabilities
third parties, could require us to seek licensemfthird parties, and could prevent us from manufaing, selling or using our products. ~
occurrence of this litigation, or the effect of aaiverse determination in any of this type of litiga, could have a material adverse effect or
business, financial condition and results of openat

Our failure to protect or enforce our intellectpabperty rights could have a material adverse eff@cour business, results of operations
financial condition.

Further consolidation among our customers may resinl the loss of some customers and may reducessdlgring the pendency of busine
combinations and related integration activities.

We believe consolidation among our customers infthere will continue in order for them to increas®mrket share and achieve gre
economies of scale. Consolidation has impacteduosiness as our customers focus on completingnéssicombinations and integrating t
operations. In connection with this merger anduition activity, our customers may postpone onaed orders for our product based
revised plans for technology or network expansiending consolidation activity. Customers integrgtiargescale acquisitions may a
reduce their purchases of equipment during thgiaten period, or postpone or cancel orders.

The impact of significant mergers among our custsnmn our business is likely to be unclear untinetime after such transactions
completed. After a consolidation occurs, a customa&y choose to reduce the number of vendors frdichwit purchases equipment and 1
choose one of our competitors as its preferred ment@ihere can be no assurance that we will coattiousupply equipment to the surviv
communications service provider after a businessbioation is completed.

We are dependent on key personnel.

Our failure to attract and retain skilled persono@lld hinder the management of our business, esgarch and development, our sales
marketing efforts and our manufacturing capab8iti©ur future success depends to a significantegegpon the continued services of
senior management personnel, including Cheryl PariBek, our Chief Executive Officer and John P. Hilir Chief Operating Officer. We he
employment agreements with Ms. Beranek and Mr.tHét provides that if we terminate the employnafrgither executive without cause c
the executive terminates her or his employmengéard reason, we would be required to make speqif@sainents to them as described in
employment agreements. We have key person lifigramee on Ms. Beranek and Mr. Hill. Further, outufe success also depends on
continuing ability to attract, retain and motivdtghly qualified managerial, technical and salesspenel. Our inability to retain or attr
qualified personnel could have a significant negaéffect and thereby materially harm our busirsssfinancial condition.

Product defects or the failure of our products toeet specifications could cause us to lose custonard sales or to incur unexpect
expenses.

If our products do not meet our customerstformance requirements, our customer relatiossimnipy suffer. Also, our products may con
defects or fail to meet product specifications. Aajure or poor performance of our products caelsult in:

. lack of or delayed market acceptance of our pregjuct
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. delayed product shipments;

. unexpected expenses and diversion of resourceplace defective products or identify and corrkeetdource of errors;
. damage to our reputation and our customer reldtipas

. delayed recognition of sales or reduced sales; and

. product liability claims or other claims for damagbat may be caused by any product defects coimeaihce failures.

Our products are often critical to the performan€delecommunications systems. Many of our suggyeements contain limited warra
provisions. If these contractual limitations areenforceable in a particular jurisdiction or if wee exposed to product liability claims that
not covered by insurance, a claim could harm ogirnass.

Our stock price has been volatile historically amgiay continue to be volatile. The price of our commstock may fluctuate significantly.

The trading price of our common stock has beenmaag continue to be subject to wide fluctuationsur €tock price may fluctuate in respo
to a number of events and factors, such as quastariations in operating results, announcementedainological innovations or new prodt
by us or our competitors, changes in financialnestes and recommendations by securities analyggferating and stock price performe
of other companies that investors may deem comfmtalus, and new reports relating to trends inmoarkets or general economic conditions.

In addition, the stock market is subject to pricel aolume fluctuations that affect the market pgider companies in general, and smal
capitalization, hightechnology companies like us in particular. Thiesad market and industry fluctuations may advgraéfect the price «
our common stock, regardless of our operating perdoce. Further, any failure by us to meet or eddbe expectations of financial anal
or investors is likely to cause a decline in oumawon stock price. Further, recent economic comaktihave resulted in significant fluctuati

in stock prices for many companies, including Cfield. We cannot predict when the stock markets$ e market for our common stock r
stabilize. In addition, although our common stigkisted on the NASDAQ Stock Market, our commoackt has experienced low trad
volume in our past. Limited trading volume subgestir common stock to greater price volatility amagy make it difficult for our sharehold:

to sell shares at an attractive price.

Future sales of shares of our common stock in th&bfic market may negatively affect our stock price.

Future sales of our common stock, or the perceptiahthese sales could occur, could have a sigmfinegative effect on the market pric
our common stock. In addition, upon exercise dstnding options, the number of shares outstandingur common stock could incre:
substantially. This increase, in turn, could dilduture earnings per share, if any, and could elepthe market value of our comr
stock. Dilution and potential dilution, the availity of a large amount of shares for sale, arelgbssibility of additional issuances and sal
our common stock may negatively affect both theitrg price of our common stock and the liquiditycafr common stock. These sales
might make it more difficult for us to sell equisgcurities or equityelated securities in the future at a time andeptitat we would dee
appropriate.
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Anti-takeover provisions in our organizational documenMinnesota law and other agreements could preventlielay a change in control
of our company.

Certain provisions of our articles of incorporatiemmd bylaws, Minnesota law and other agreemenysmake it more difficult for a thirgharty
to acquire, or discourage a third-party from atténgpto acquire, control of our company, including:

. the provisions of our bylaws setting forth the athea notice and information requirements for shdddroproposals, includir
nominees for directors, to be considered propadyght before shareholde

. the right of our board of directors to establishrenthan one class or series of shares and todixelative rights and preferences of
such different classes or seri

. the provisions of Minnesota law relating to busgnesmbinations and control share acquisitions; and

. the provisions of our stock option plans allowimg the acceleration of vesting or payments of awap@nted under the plans in
event of specified events that result in a “chaimgeontrol” and provisions of agreements with certain of oueceive officer
requiring payments if their employment is termimbaad there is “change in contrc”

These measures could discourage or prevent a tekedws or changes in our management, even ifcgnisition or such changes would
beneficial to our shareholders. This may havegatie effect on the price of our common stock.

We incur significant increased costs as a resultmferating as a public company, which may adverseffect our stock price, operatir
results and financial condition.

In the future, we may incur significant legal, agoting and other expenses as a result of operasng public company. The Sarbaedey
Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act'gs well as new rules subsequently implemented &y5tC, have imposed various new requiren
on public companies, including requiring changesdrporate governance practices. Our managementaer personnel will need to devo
substantial amount of time to these new compliang&tives. Moreover, these rules and regulationk increase our legal and financ
compliance costs and will make some activities nione consuming and costly. In addition, the Sads@xley Act requires, among ott
things, that we maintain effective internal corgrfdr financial reporting and disclosure contratsl rocedures. In particular, we are reqt
to perform system and process evaluation and testirthe effectiveness of our internal controlsrdireancial reporting, as required by Sec
404 of the Sarbanedxley Act. Our testing may reveal deficienciesomr internal controls over financial reporting tteae deemed to
material weaknesses. Our compliance with Sectid will require that we incur substantial accougtiexpense and expend signific
management efforts. Further, our internal con&fféctiveness may be impacted if we are unableetainr sufficient, skilled finance a
accounting personnel, especially in light of theréased demand for such personnel among publadiett companies. Moreover, if we are
able to comply with the requirements of Section #04 timely manner, or if we or our independenfistered public accounting firm identif
deficiencies in our internal controls over finandai@porting that are deemed to be material wealasgghe market price of our stock cc
decline, and we could be subject to sanctions westigations by the SEC or other regulatory autiesi which would require additior
financial and management resources.
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We face risks associated with expanding our salasswle of the United States.

We believe that our future growth depends in ppdruour ability to increase sales in internationmakrkets. These sales are subject to a vi
of risks, including fluctuations in currency exclyarrates, tariffs, import restrictions and othedé barriers, unexpected changes in regul
requirements, longer accounts receivable paymeart¢gyand potentially adverse tax consequences@matt license requirements. In addit
we are subject to the risks inherent in conduchinginess internationally, including political antbaomic instability and unexpected char
in diplomatic and trade relationships. We cannaiuea that one or more of these factors will notehavmaterial adverse effect on our busi
strategy and financial condition

ITEM1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Clearfield leases a 46,583 square foot facility5d80 Nathan Lane North in Plymouth, Minnesota cstitej of our corporate office
manufacturing and warehouse space. The origiageleommenced on July 1, 2006, with rent commeraminjovember 1, 2006. On Ma
28, 2013, the Company entered into an amendmehetoriginal lease agreement that expanded itedeggace as of April 1, 2013 by 16,
square feet (which includedpproximately 9,561 square feet that was alreadggbased by the Company pursuant to previous le
agreements for this facility). This amendment alsbthe Compang’pro rata share of certain expenses for suchiadditieased space, set
base rent for the expanded lease space for thenéenaf the term, and extended the term of thedamtil February 28, 2015.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no pending legal proceedings againstvahiing the Company for which the outcome is liked have a material adverse effect u
its financial position or results of operations.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART Il .

ITEMS. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUI TY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
REPURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is traded on The NASDAQ Global kéasystem of The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC under siyenbol “CLFD.”

The following table sets forth the quarterly higiddow sales prices for our common stock for eaddrigr of the past two fiscal years.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 201 High Low_

Quarter ended December 31, 2( $ 53t $ 4.1¢€
Quarter ended March 31, 20 6.01 4.8¢
Quarter ended June 30, 2C 12.9( 5.7¢
Quarter ended September 30, 2 14.7¢ 9.7¢4
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 201 High Low_

Quarter ended December 31, 2( $ 761 3 5.2C
Quarter ended March 31, 20 7.47 5.3¢
Quarter ended June 30, 2C 5.57 3.9t
Quarter ended September 30, 2 5.6t 4.5:

The foregoing prices reflect inter-dealer priceghaut dealer markup, markdown, or commissionsraag not represent actual transactions.
Approximate Number of Holders of Common Stock

There were approximately 304 holders of recordufammon stock as of September 30, 2013.

Dividends

We have never paid cash dividends on our commark std/e currently intend to retain any earningsuse in our operations and do not ini
in the foreseeable future to pay cash dividendsusrcommon stock.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table describes shares of our comistonk that are available on September 30, 201Bdarhase under outstanding stock-base
awards, or reserved for issuance under stock-basadis or other rights that may be granted indiheré, under our equity compensation
plans:

Number of

securities
Number of remaining availabl
securities to be  Weighted- for future issuanc

issued upon average exercis under equity
exercise of price of compensation pla
outstanding outstanding (excluding those
options, warran options, warran  reflected in first
Plan Categor and rights and rights column)
Equity compensation plans approved
by security holder

2007 Stock Compensation Pl 836,01¢ $ 3.31 646,87¢
Stock Option Plan for Non- Employee Directors 27,50( 1.12 -
Total 863,51 $ 3.24 646,87

All outstanding equity awards have been grantedyamt to shareholder-approved plans. In additarptions, shares may be issued in the
form of restricted stock awards and other stocletiasvards.

Issuer Repurchases

The Company repurchased a total of 18,786 sharesrafommon stock in connection with payment oetaxpon the vesting of restricted sl
previously issued to employees.

The following table presents the total number @freb repurchased during the fourth quarter of fi@843 by month and the average price
per share:

Total number ¢ Average pric

Period shares withhel paid per sha
July 1-31, 2013 -$ =
August -31, 2013 18,78¢ 11.8¢
September 1-30, 2013 - -
Total 18,78¢ $ 11.8¢
ITEM6 . SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Not Requirec
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSI S OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

Statements made in this Annual Report on Form 1hrkhe Companys other SEC filings, in press releases and ingiedéments, that are |
statements of historical fact are “forward-lookstgtements.” Such forwatdeking statements involve known and unknown riskg;ertaintie
and other factors which may cause the actual sesulperformance of the Company to be materialfffedint from the results or performau
expressed or implied by such forward-looking staets. The words “believes,” “expects,” “anticipateseeks” and similar expressio
identify forward-looking statements. Readers argioaed not to place undue reliance on these fahdaoking statements, which speak onl'
of the date the statement was made. The risks andrtainties that could cause actual results tferdihaterially and adversely from -
forward-looking statements include those risks dbed in Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors.”

Overview of Business:The Company sells highly configurable fiber managetrand connectivity products to broadband serpicider:
serving the FTTP, FTTB, FTTell site markets in the U.S. and in certain liditearkets outside the U.S., currently countriehéCaribbeal
Central America and South America. The Comparsdles channels include direct to customer, thraligtribution partners, and to origi
equipment suppliers who private label its produdtie Company products are sold by its sales employees andpéamitent sale
representatives.

Critical Accounting Policies: In preparing our financial statements, we makevegtés, assumptions and judgments that can hagmifican!
impact on our sales, income or loss from operatamsnet income or loss, as well as on the valuedin assets and liabilities on our bal:
sheet. We believe that there are several accouptiligies that are critical to an understandinguwif historical and future performance, as t
policies affect the reported amounts of sales, es@e and significant estimates and judgments a@bplemanagement. While there ai
number of accounting policies, methods and estisnaftecting our financial statements, areas thaparticularly significant include:

. Revenue recognition;

. Accounting for income taxes;

. Valuation and evaluating impairmentarid-lived assets and goodwill; and
. Valuation of inventory.

Revenue Recognition Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidenca afrangement exists, the product has been detiyéne fee i
fixed, acceptance by the customer is reasonablgineand collection is probable. This generallgws upon shipment of product to
customer. Sales of the Company’s products areestlip limited warranty obligations that are in@ddin the Compang’ terms an
conditions. Also, the Company offers limited digsnts and rebates to customers which are recordedtisales on an estimated basis a
sales are incurred. The Company records freighemees billed to customers as revenue and theedekdtipping and handling cost in cos
sales. Taxes collected from customers and rentittgdvernmental authorities are presented on hasis.

Income Taxes We account for income taxes in accordance with Aoting Standards Codification (*“ASC”) 74lhicome Taxesunder whic
deferred income taxes are recognized based onstimeated future tax effects of differences betwtenfinancial statement and tax base
assets and liabilities given the provisions of ¢edi¢ax laws. Deferred income tax provisions aedéfits are based on changes to the ass
liabilities from year to year. In providing for defed taxes, we consider tax regulations of thisdigtions in which we operate, estimate
future taxable income, and available tax plannitrgtsgies. If tax regulations, operating results the ability to implement taptanning
strategies vary, adjustments to the carrying vafugeferred tax assets and liabilities may be megli A valuation allowance is recorded w
it is more likely than not that a deferred tax &3 not be realized. The recorded valuatioroathnce is based on significant estimates
judgments and if the facts and circumstances chdrggealuation allowance could materially char
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In accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, weognize the financial statement benefit of a tesgiton only after determining that f
relevant tax authority would more likely than notstin the position following an audit. For taxsjtions meeting the more likely than
threshold, the amount recognized in the finandelesnents is the largest benefit that has a grétader50 percent likelihood of being reali
upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax atth. The Company recognizes interest and peasliccrued on any unrecognized
benefits as a component of income tax expense.

As of September 30, 2013, the Company had U.Srdéded state net operating loss (NOL) cdogwards of approximately $14,332,000
$19,947,000, respectively. The U.S. federal NOlrycBbrward amounts expire in fiscal years 2023tlgh 2028 if not utilized. The state N
carry forward amounts expire in fiscal years 20irduaigh 2022 if not utilized. In fiscal year 2008¢ Company completed an Internal Reve
Code Section 382 analysis of the loss carry-forwaadd determined that all of the Company’s lossyefarwards were utilizable and r
restricted under Section 382. The Company hasipdated its Section 382 analysis subsequent to 2868oes not believe there have |
any events subsequent to 2009 that would impadaraéysis.

As part of the process of preparing our financiatesnents, we are required to estimate our inc@xdidbility in each of the jurisdictions
which we do business. This process involves esitigaur actual current tax expense together wseasing temporary differences resu
from differing treatment of items for tax and acotng purposes. These differences result in defetax assets and liabilities. We must
assess the likelihood that these deferred taxsasskbe recovered from future taxable income @ndhe extent we believe that recovery is
more likely than not or unknown, we must estabéishaluation allowance. If the valuation allowateeeduced, the Company would recort
income tax benefit in the period in which that det@ation is made. If the valuation allowance rigreased, the Company would rec
additional income tax expense.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company reed a portion of its remaining valuation allowanteonsideration of all available posit
and negative evidence, including our historicalrafirg results, current financial condition, andqmaial future taxable income. The reduc
in the valuation allowance in the fourth quarterfistal year 2012 resulted in a noash income tax benefit of $3,518,000. As a resud
recorded an income tax benefit of $3,324,000 fenythar ended September 30, 2012 compared to inzomexpense of $2,803,000 for the y
ended September 30, 2013.

As of September 30, 2013, the Companghly remaining valuation allowance of approxinhat®975,000 relates to state net operating
carry forwards we do not expect to utilize. Thex@any will continue to assess the assumptions tasddtermine the amount of our valua
allowance and may adjust the valuation allowancéutare periods based on changes in assumptiorstohated future income and ot
factors.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.Slidfal jurisdiction, and various state jurisdictiorgased on its evaluation, the Company
concluded that it has no significant unrecognizedtienefits. With limited exceptions, the Compaayo longer subject to U.S. federal

state income tax examinations for fiscal years rgngiirior to 1998. We are generally subject to WeSleral and state tax examinations fo
tax years since 1998 due to our net operating dasyforwards and the utilization of the carryfords in years still open under statute
2007, the Company changed its fiscal year from M&® to September 30.

17




Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Goodwill The Company’s londived assets at September 30, 2013 consisted pepsg plant an
equipment, patents and goodwill. The Company wevithe carrying amount of its property, plant amgiipment and patents if events
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrgimgunt of the assets may not be recoverable. Whisrnreview indicates the carryi
amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the fstiva future undiscounted cash flows expected tgdmerated by the assets, the Com
recognizes an asset impairment charge againsttaperdor the amount by which the carrying amouhthe impaired asset exceeds its
value.

Determining fair values of property, plant and gooént and patents using a discounted cash flowaddtivolves significant judgment a
requires the Company to make significant estimate$ assumptions, including longrm projections of cash flows, market conditioms
appropriate discount rates. Judgments are basadgtamical experience, current market trends, ottagons with external valuation special
and other information. If facts and circumstanckange, the use of different estimates and assongptould result in a materially differ
outcome. The Company generally develops thesedste based on recent sales data for existing gt®dplanned timing of new prod
launches, and estimated expansion of the FTTP marke

The Company operates as one reporting unit anéwavihe carrying amount of goodwill annually in tharth quarter of each fiscal year i
more frequently if events or changes in circumsaniadicate that the carrying amount of the assetg not be recoverable. The Comg
determines its fair value for goodwill impairmeasting purposes by calculating its market capisilin and comparing that to the Company’
carrying value. The Comparsygoodwill impairment test for the years ended &mapeer 30, 2013 and 2012 resulted in excess fairevale
carrying value and therefore, no adjustments wexdeno goodwill. During the year ended Septembef813, there were no triggering evt
that indicated goodwill could be impaired.

A significant reduction in our market capitalizatior in the carrying amount of net assets of a ntémp unit could result in an impairme
charge. If the carrying amount of a reporting uniteeds its fair value, the Company would meatheepossible goodwill impairment Ic
based on an allocation of the estimate of fair eadfi the reporting unit to all of the underlyingsats and liabilities of the reporting u
including any previously unrecognized intangiblsets. The excess of the fair value of a repouinig over the amounts assigned to its a:
and liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwiAn impairment loss is recognized to the extdrdt a reporting unit's recorded good
exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill. An iawgment loss would be based on significant estimated judgments, and if the facts
circumstances change, a potential impairment coale a material impact on the Company’s finandatkesnents.

No impairment of lon-lived assets or goodwill has occurred during tearg ended September 30, 2013 or 2012, respectively

Valuation of Inventory The Company maintains a material amount of inventor support its manufacturing operations and aust
demand. This inventory is stated at the lowerast or market. On a regular basis, the Companpweyvits inventory and identifies that wh
is excess, slow moving and obsolete by considdantprs such as inventory levels, expected protiiecand forecasted sales demand.
identified excess, slow moving and obsolete invgnite written down to its market value through aigfe to cost of sales. It is possible
additional inventory write-down charges may be megliin the future if there is a significant deelim demand for the Compasyproducts ar
the Company does not adjust its manufacturing prisaiol accordingly.
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Results of Operation

Year ended September 30, 2013 compared to year eadBeptember 30, 2012

Net sales for the fiscal year 2013 increased 42%5® 353,000 from net sales of $37,474,000 in 2@&es growth was experienced fi
existing clients as well as from the developmenh@fv accounts within the telecommunications inqusfrhe growth in sales includes g
from within Tier 3 Carriers, an emerging presenssoaiated with Tier 2 Carriers who have a natidoadprint, cable providers as well as non
traditional providers who are entering the U.S. keair The Company also recorded a growing percentdds sales from accounts outsid
the U.S., principally Canada and the Caribbearoregof Central America.

As a result of the above factors, sales in fiseary2013 to commercial data networks and broadbandce providers were 90% of net sale
$48,048,000, while sales associated with builgiot manufacturing for original equipment manutaets outside of the telecommunicati
market were 10% of net sales, or $5,305,000. Boalf year 2012, sales to commercial data netwarksbroadband service providers v
87% of net sales, or $32,553,000, while sales &ssacwith build-toprint manufacturing for original equipment manutaets outside of tt
telecommunications market were 13% of net sale$4%21,000.

Cost of sales for the fiscal year 2013 was $31(B®), an increase of $9,176,000, or 41% from theB®000 in fiscal year 2012. Gr
margin was 41.2% in fiscal year 2013, as compayetDi8% for fiscal year 2012. Gross profit incexhd4%, or $6,704,000, from $15,286,
for fiscal year 2012 to $21,990,000 for fiscal y2@843. The year-overear increase in cost of goods and gross proéitrissult of increased 1
sales. The increase in gross profit percentatieeisesult of increasing volumes, operating efficies and product mix.

Selling, general and administrative expense farafiyear 2013 was $14,545,000, up 32% compared2@0%1,000 for fiscal year 2012. T
increase is primarily composed of $2,327,000 inhargcommission and performance compensation ascrasgdociated with higher |
sales. Additionally, equity compensation expensadased $283,000 due to a higher number of equilgrds outstanding, and proc
development costs increased $234,000.

Income from operations for fiscal year 2013 was18%,000 compared to $4,275,000 for fiscal year 20Mi&s increase is due to contini
product acceptance across both existing clientsamdaccounts that drove increased net salesdal figar 2013.

Interest income in fiscal year 2013 was $92,000pzmed to $102,000 for the fiscal year 2012. Theetese is a result of declining interest r
resulting in lower returns on our investments. Twmmpany invests its excess cash primarily in FB&cked bank certificates of deposit
money market accounts.

Income tax expense for fiscal year 2013 was $208B, Income tax for fiscal year 2012 was a benaffi63,324,000. Our current y:
provision for income taxes includes estimated fadalternative minimum taxes, state income andchee taxes but is primarily a resuli
deferred tax expense resulting from NOL utilizatidburing the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2012 Company reversed a substantial po
of the remaining valuation allowance of the defén&x assets in the amount of $3,518,000, incrgasim net income by that amount as
and contributing $0.28 per diluted share for thegae

Net income for fiscal year 2013 was $4,734,000 @88 per share for basic and $0.36 for diluted, gamed to $7,701,000 or $0.62 per b

and $0.60 per diluted share for the year 2012. déwrease in net income was primarily due to thversal of a portion of the valuati
allowance related to deferred tax assets in fiz38&P.
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Liquidity and Capital Resource

As of September 30, 2013, our principal sourcaaqfidlity was our cash and cash equivalents andt4bon investments. Those sources -
$15,800,000 at September 30, 2013, compared tdZ$34000, at September 30, 2012. Our excess cadghdsted mainly in certificates
deposit backed by the FDIC and money market aceoubtibstantially all of our funds are insured thy EDIC. Investments considered long
term are $6,770,000 at September 30, 2013, compar$d,572,000 at September 30, 2012. We bellegecombined balances of shoetsr
cash and investments along with laiegm investments provide a more accurate indicadifoaur available liquidity. At September 30, 2(
the Company had combined balances of short-terimaad investments and lotgrm investments of $22,570,000 as compared ti3$X900!

at September 30, 2012. We had no long-term ddlgfations at September 30, 2013 or 2012, respdygtive

Operating Activities

Net cash generated from operations for the fiseal ¥nded September 30, 2013 totaled $4,339,086h @rovided by operations included
income of $4,734,000, which included non-cash egpsrfor depreciation and amortization of $476,000 stockbased compensation
$754,000, along with a nozash gain from deferred taxes of $2,564,000. Césig working capital items using cash includedramease i
accounts receivable of $4,815,000, reflecting iaseel sales levels in the fourth quarter of 2013] an increase in inventory
$2,655,000. Accounts receivable balances canfheited by the timing of shipments for customejexts and payment terms. The incr
in inventory reflects higher stocking levels foistig products due to higher demand, and for nesdyrct offerings including Clearview Bl
and FieldShield. Changes in working capital itepreviding cash included an increase in accountsalpigy and accrued expenses
$3,281,000. Changes in accounts payable and acexpenses reflect an increase to employee comg@amsacruals of $1,888,000 associi
with higher sales.

Net cash generated from operations for the fiseal ynded September 30, 2012 totaled $3,826,0@¢h @avided by operations included
income of $7,701,000, which included non-cash esgpenfor depreciation and amortization of $405,060ckbased compensation
$471,000, and losses on disposal of assets of @24dlong with a normash gain from deferred taxes of $3,437,000. Césmmg workin
capital items providing cash included a decreasacicounts receivable of $206,000 reflecting lowales levels in the fourth quarter
2012. Changes in working capital items using daslude increases in inventory of $213,000, anease in other current assets of $307
and a decrease in accounts payable and accruedsespef $1,023,000. Changes in accounts payabtllaamued expenses reflect a decree
employee compensation accruals of $639,000 retatedtentive payments.

Investing Activities

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, wd $%,037,000 in cash for the purchase of capgaipenent and patents. Included in
amount were purchases for manufacturing equipnretité amount of $947,000. During the same periecowrchased $8,683,000 of FDIC.
backed certificates of deposit and sold $9,60080BDIC-backed certificates of deposit. The result is aasbd in investing activities w
$114,000 in fiscal year 2013 as compared to $900D4in fiscal year 2012. The Company intends tatinoe to invest in the necessary
appropriate manufacturing equipment to help maingacompetitive position in manufacturing capapibut has no material commitments
capital expenditures for fiscal year 2014.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, wd $591,000 in cash for the purchase of equipmeatpatents. Included in this ama
were purchases for manufacturing and engineeringetent in the amount of $295,000, IT equipment softlvare purchases of $129,000,
additional patent cost of $40,000. During the sgmeeiod we purchased $11,942,000 of F&:ked certificates of deposit and ¢
$2,819,000 of FDIGacked certificates of deposit. The result wastadeerease in cash from investing activities 0f7$8,000 in fiscal ye:
2012.
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Financing Activities

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, tepany received $200,000 from employgag’chase of stock through our Employee S
Purchase Plan (ESPP) and the exercise of stocknsptiThe Company used $298,000 to pay for taxesrasult of employeegxercises (
stock options and vesting of restricted sharesgusiare withholding. As a result, the net casld iséinancing activities was $95,000.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012 wevett $143,000 from employegsarticipation and purchase of stock through our Bygx
Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) and $142,000 from shense of stock as a result of employees and dieiercising stock options. The
cash received from financing activities was $286,00

The Company has current cash and cash equivaladtsteortterm investments with a maturity of less than oparythat total $15,800,0
which we believe provides a strong financial positand along with cash flow from operations will fagficient to meet our working capi
and investment requirements for beyond the nextndBths. The Company intends on utilizing its alaié cash and assets primarily fo
continued organic growth, as well as potential faitatrategic transactions. However, future growttganically or through acquisition, rr
require the Company to raise capital through aolditi equity or debt financing. There can be no @sgie that any such financing woulc
available on commercially acceptable terms.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

From time to time, new accounting pronouncemengsissued by the Financial Accounting Standards @oarother standard setting boc
that may have an impact on the Compangccounting and reporting. The Company believeg #Huch recently issued accoun
pronouncements and other authoritative guidancefich the effective date is in the future eithéll mot have an impact on its accounting
reporting or that such impact will not be matet@its financial position, results of operationsdacash flows when implemented.

ITEM7B. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSU RES ABOUT MARKET RISK
The Company is subject to changes in market inteatss on cash, cash equivalents, and gbam-investments. These market risks hawv
changed significantly since September 30, 20Xkireases or decreases in interest rates will haweffect on these balances. At Septembe

2013, and 2012, the Company had cash and cashaéeptty and shoterm investments totaling $15,800,000 and $14,T&b,Most of thes
balances were invested in interest-bearing monekehaccounts or CD’s maturing within 12 months.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENT ARY DATA
Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Quarterly data for the years ended September 3@ 26d 2012 was as follows:

Quarter Endei
December 3: March 31, June 30, September 3

Statement of Earnings Data 2012 2013 2013 2013
Net sales $ 10,265,36 $10,514,36 $13,534,76' $ 19,038,58
Gross profit 3,924,261  4,215,32! 5,629,122 8,220,87!
Income from operation 885,74¢ 949,44; 1,796,23. 3,813,31
Net income 545,21: 545,27¢  1,146,98 2,496,36
Net income per share Ba: $ 0.04 $ 0.0t $ 0.0¢ $ 0.2C
Net income per share Dilute 0.04 0.04 0.0¢ 0.1¢

Quarter Ende:
December 3: March 31, June 30, September 3

Statement of Earnings Data 2011 2012 2012 2012*
Net sales $ 9,165,20: $7,112,09 $10,793,75 $ 10,402,91
Gross profit 3,794,28. 2,719,42' 4,556,77. 4,215,23
Income from operation 1,021,16! 147,05« 1,782,51! 1,324,14
Net income 999,59¢ 131,92 1,741,96! 4,827,70
Net income per share Ba: $ 0.0¢ $ 0.01 $ 014 $ 0.3¢
Net income per share Dilute 0.0¢ 0.01 0.14 0.37

*During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2012, tiempany reversed a substantial portion of the m@mgvaluation allowance of the defer
tax assets in the amount of $3,518,000, increasimgiet income by that amount as well and continigu$0.28 per diluted share for the period.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Clearfield, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance she@keaffield, Inc. (a Minnesota corporation) (the f@many”)as of September 30, 2013 :
2012, and the related statements of earnings, lsblaiers’equity, and cash flows for each of the years thated. These financial stateme
are the responsibility of the Compasymanagement. Our responsibility is to expressganian on these financial statements based o
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstaits of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform an audit of itgiatiecontrol over financial reporting. C
audits included consideration of internal contreeofinancial reporting as a basis for designingitaprocedures that are appropriate in
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compsairyternal control over financial reportii
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An aulibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenpparting the amounts and disclosure
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made byagement, as well as evaluating
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrecabove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of Clearfield, Inc. as
September 30, 2013 and 2012, and the results opésations and its cash flows for each of theyé&aen ended in conformity with account
principles generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
November 21, 201
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CLEARFIELD, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

September 3 September 3

2013 2012
Assets
Current Asset
Cash and cash equivalel $ 9,80795 $ 5,678,14.
Shor-term investment 5,992,001 9,107,001
Accounts receivable, n 7,837,54. 3,022,63!
Inventories 5,626,76. 2,971,61.
Deferred taxe 4,615,11( 1,491,47
Other current assets 317,82¢ 473,72t
Total current asse 34,197,20 22,744,59
Property, plant and equipment, | 1,796,81. 1,107,46:
Other Asset:
Long-term investment 6,770,00! 4,572,001
Goodwill 2,570,51. 2,570,51.
Deferred taxe 810,57: 6,498,25!
Other 268,24( 247,51
Total other assets 10,419,32 13,888,27
Total Assets $ 46,413,33 $ 37,740,33
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payabl $ 2627,76. $ 1,492,29.
Accrued compensatic 3,522,90 1,470,23;
Accrued expenses 163,53: 54,26¢
Total current liabilities 6,314,20: 3,016,79
Deferred rent 21,10: 37,64
Total Liabilities 6,335,30: 3,054,43
Commitment and Contingenci
Shareholder Equity
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 500 shares; n@shssued or outstandil - -
Common stock, $ .01 par value; 50,000,000 shar®eared; 12,974,263 and 12,830,100 shares issued
outstanding at September 30, 2013 and 2012, reégplgc 129,74: 128,30:
Additional paic-in capital 54,808,92 54,152,08
Accumulated deficit (14,860,63) (19,594,48)
Total shareholders’ equity 40,078,03 34,685,90
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 46,413,33 $ 37,740,33

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating expens¢
Selling, general and administrative
Income from operations
Interest incomt

Income before income tax

Income tax expense (benefit)
Net income

Net income per share Basic
Net income per share Diluted

Shares used in calculation of net income per sl

Basic
Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.

CLEARFIELD, INC.
STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
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Year Ended Year Ended
September 3 September 3
2013 2012
$ 53,353,08 $ 37,473,96

31,363,50 22,188,24
21,989,57 15,285,72
14,544,84 11,010,84
7,444,73! 4,274,88
92,28: 102,01
7,537,011 4,376,89!
2,803,17. (3,324,29)

$ 4,73384. % 7,701,19
$ 0.3¢ $ 0.62
$ 0.3€ $ 0.6C
12,527,15 12,371,37
13,078,93 12,790,16




CLEARFIELD, INC.
STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS'’ EQUITY

Common Stocl Additional Accumulater Total shareholders’
Shares  Amount paic-in capita deficit equity
Balance at September 30, 201 12,270,69 $122,70° $ 53,402,13 $(27,295,67) $ 26,229,17
Stocl-based compensation expel - - 467,12( - 467,12(
Restricted stock issuance, | 359,00( 3,59( - - 3,59(
Employee stock purchase pl 28,92¢ 28¢ 142,25¢ - 142 ,54.
Exercise of stock options, net of shares exchafyed
payment and tax withholdir 171,48( 1,71¢ 140,56¢ - 142,28«
Net income - - - 7,701,109 7,701,19.
Balance at September 30, 201 12,830,10' $128,30: $ 54,152,08 $(19,594,48) $ 34,685,90
Stocl-based compensation expel - - 753,72 - 753,72
Restricted stock issuance, | 4,09( 41 25 66
Employee stock purchase pl 35,597 35€ 135,62! - 135,98:
Exercise of stock options, net of shares exchafyed
paymeni 139,45! 1,394 62,60¢ = 64,00(
Tax withholding related to vesting of restrictedcit grants
and exercise of stock optio (34,979 (349 (297,639 - (297,989
Excess tax benefit of stock options exerci - - 2,50¢ - 2,50¢
Net income - - - 4,733,84. 4,733,84.
Balance at September 30, 201 12,974,26. $129,74. $ 54,808,92 $(14,860,63) $ 40,078,03

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.
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CLEARFIELD, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash praVice operating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Deferred income taxe
Gain on sale of asse
Stocl-based compensation expel
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories
Other current asse
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and equipm
Purchase of investmer
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn
Patent addition
Sale of investments

Net cash used in investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under emelstock purchase pli
Proceeds from issuance of common si
Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock opti
Tax withholding related to vesting of restrictedct grants and exercise of stock options
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivz
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year fc

Income taxe:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.
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Year ended Year ended

2013

September 3 September 3

2012

$ 4,733,84 $ 7,701,19

476,40( 404,76
2,564,04!  (3,436,93)
15,38¢ 23,64t
753,72 470,71
(4,814,90) 206,22
(2,655,15) (212,85
(15,157 (307,41
3,280,86  (1,023,01)
4339,05  3,826,33
(1,018,45) (550,61
(8,683,00) (11,942,00)
6,50( .
(18,859 (40,429
9,600,000  2,819,00!
(113,800  (9,714,04)
135,98: 142,54;
64,06¢ 142,28«
2,50¢ .
(297,989 -
(95,436 284,82
4,129,81.  (5,602,88)
5678,14.  11,281,02

$ 980795 $ 5,678,14

153,64«

163,75t



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES

Description of Business:Clearfield, Inc., (the Company) is a manufactureracbroad range of standard and custom passiveectinity
products to customers throughout the United Staféese products include fiber distribution systeamtical components, Outside Plant (C
cabinets, and fiber and copper cable assembli¢ssémae the communication service provider, inalgdiiber-to-thePremises (FTTP), lar
enterprise, and original equipment manufactureESM®) markets.

Revenue Recognition:Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidenca afrangement exists, the product has been delivéne fee i
fixed, acceptance by the customer is reasonablgineand collection is probable. This generallxws upon shipment of product to
customer. Sales of the Company’s products areestlip limited warranty obligations that are in@ddin the Compang’ terms an
conditions. Also, the Company offers limited dignts and rebates to customers which are recordedtisales on an estimated basis a
sales are incurred. The Company records freighegmaes billed to customers as revenue and theedesdtipping and handling cost in cos
sales. Taxes collected from customers and rentittgdvernmental authorities are presented on hasis.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsThe Company considers all highly liquid investmentith original maturities of three months or leesbe cas
equivalents. Cash equivalents at September 3@ &0d 2012 consist entirely of short-term moneykaisaccounts.

The Company maintains cash balances at severalfadanstitutions, and at times, such balancegeddnsured limits. The Company has
experienced any losses in such accounts and bglieigenot exposed to any significant credit mskcash and cash equivalents.

Investments: The Company currently invests its excess cash ik bartificates of deposit (CB) that are fully insured by the Federal Deg
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) with a term of not mtnan three years. C®With original maturities of more than three manéne reported
held-tomaturity investments and are recorded at amortipst] which approximates fair value due to the igége risk of changes in value ¢
to interest rates. The maturity dates of our Cid’'September 30, 2013 are as follows:

Less than one ye: $ 5,992,00
1-3 years 6,770,00!
Total $12,762,00

Accounts ReceivableCredit is extended based on the evaluation of tomes’s financial condition and collateral is geadrnot

required. Accounts that are outstanding longen tha contractual payment terms are considereddp@st The Company determines its
allowance by considering a number of factors, idiclg the length of time trade receivables are gast the Company’s previous loss history,
the customer’s current ability to pay its obligatim the Company, and the condition of the gersrahomy and the industry as whole. The
Company writes off accounts receivable when thepire uncollectible; payments subsequently receivesuch receivables are credited to
the allowance for doubtful accounts. The allowafoceloubtful accounts was $97,950 at both Septer®8de2013 and September 30, 2012.
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: The financial statements include the following fin&l instrumentscash and cash equivalents, s
term investments, accounts receivable, accountalpp@yand accrued expenses. All financial instrusierarrying values approximate f
values because of the short-term nature of theuimsnts.

Inventories: Inventories consist of finished goods, raw materiahd work in process and are stated at the loweaverage cost !
market. Inventory is valued using material colstisor charges, and allocated factory overhead elsaagd consists of the following:

September 3 September

2013 2012
Raw materials $ 4,110,22. $ 2,300,38
Work-in-process 494,98 336,29¢
Finished goods 1,021,56! 334,93t

$ 5,626,76. $ 2,971,61

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or markeh a regular basis, the Company reviews its itorgrand identifies that which is excess, ¢
moving, and obsolete by considering factors sudhamntory levels, expected product life, and fasted sales demand. Any identified exc
slow moving, and obsolete inventory is written dawrits market value through a charge to cost tfssalt is possible that additional invent:
write-down charges may be required in the fututaéfe is a significant decline in demand for tlwmPany’s products and the Company does
not adjust its manufacturing production accordingly

Property, Plant and Equipment; Property, plant and equipment are recorded at Rigiificant additions or improvements extendisgea
lives are capitalized, while repairs and mainteraae charged to expense when incurred. Depreciaiprovided in amounts sufficient
relate the cost of assets to operations over #stimated useful lives. Leasehold improvementsaarertized over the shorter of the remail
term of the lease or estimated life of the asEstimated useful lives of the assets are as follows

Years
Equipment 3-7
Leasehold improvemen 7-1C or life of leas
Vehicles 3
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES — Continued
Property, plant and equipment consist of the foitanat:

September 3 September 3

2013 2012
Manufacturing Equipmer $ 240479 $ 1,316,76
Office Equipmen 1,862,84 1,823,28.
Leasehold Improvemen 127,88: 127,88:
Vehicles 154,94! 171,74.

4,550,47. 3,439,67!
Less accumulated depreciation 2,753,66! 2,332,20:

$ 1,796,811 $ 1,107,46

Depreciation expens $ 475,52: $ 403,92

Goodwill and Patents: The Company operates as one reporting unit anéwsvihe carrying amount of goodwill annually in tbarth quarte
of each fiscal year and more frequently if eventsleanges in circumstances indicate that the cagrgimount of the assets may no
recoverable. The Company determines its fair vdtiwegoodwill impairment testing purposes by cadting its market capitalization a
comparing that to the Company’s carrying valuee Tompanys goodwill impairment test for the years ended &apier 30, 2013 and 2C
resulted in excess fair value over carrying valnd therefore, no adjustments were made to good®iliring the year ended September
2013, there were no triggering events that inditgt@odwill could be impaired.

A significant reduction in our market capitalizatior in the carrying amount of net assets of a nté@mp unit could result in an impairme
charge. If the carrying amount of a reporting uniteeds its fair value, the Company would meatheepossible goodwill impairment Ic
based on an allocation of the estimate of fair eadfi the reporting unit to all of the underlyingsats and liabilities of the reporting u
including any previously unrecognized intangiblsets. The excess of the fair value of a repouinig over the amounts assigned to its a:
and liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwiAn impairment loss is recognized to the extdrdt a reporting unit's recorded good
exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill. An iawgment loss would be based on significant estimated judgments, and if the facts
circumstances change, a potential impairment coale a material impact on the Company’s finandatkesnents.

No impairment of goodwill has occurred during tleaks ended September 30, 2013 or 2012, respect
The Company capitalizes legal costs incurred t@iobpatents. Once accepted by either the U.SnP@ffice or the equivalent office of
foreign country, these legal costs are amortizédguthe straightine method over the remaining estimated lives,exaieeding 17 years. As

September 30, 2013 the Company has four patemsegrand four pending applications pending insiut# @utside the United States.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: The Company assesses potential impairments toritslived assets or asset groups when there is evi
that events occur or changes in circumstancesatelibat the
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES — Continued

carrying amount of an asset or asset group mapeoécovered. An impairment loss is recognizednathe carrying amount of the loriged
asset or asset group is not recoverable and exdsdds value. The carrying amount of a loligd asset or asset group is not recoverabli
exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flowsceegbdo result from the use and eventual dispasitibthe asset or asset group. .
required impairment loss is measured as the antgunthich the carrying amount of a lotiged asset or asset group exceeds its fair vata
is recorded as a reduction in the carrying valughef related asset or asset group and a chargpei@tng results. Intangible assets !
indefinite lives are tested annually for impairmemtd in interim periods if certain events occuri¢ating that the carrying value of 1
intangible assets may be impaired. No impairmétdrmg-lived assets has occurred during the yeade@ September 30, 2013 and 2012.

Income Taxes:The Company records income taxes in accordancethgthiability method of accounting. Deferred taxae recognized for t
estimated taxes ultimately payable or recoverablset) on enacted tax law. The Company establisheduation allowance to reduce
deferred tax

assets when it is more likely than not that a defetax asset will not be realizable. Changesunrates are reflected in the tax provisio
they occur.

In accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, weognize the financial statement benefit of a tesgitipn only after determining that f
relevant tax authority would more likely than notstin the position following an audit. For taxsitions meeting the more likely than

threshold, the amount recognized in the finandelesnents is the largest benefit that has a grétader50 percent likelihood of being reali
upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax arith. As of September 30, 2013, the Company doets have any unrecognized

benefits. The Company recognizes interest andlfienaccrued on any unrecognized tax benefits @agonent of income tax expense.

do not expect any material changes in our unreeegiiax positions over the next 12 months.

Stock-Based Compensation We measure and recognize compensation expenssdl feiockbased payments at fair value over the reqt
service period. We use the BlaSkholes option pricing model to determine the wisidhaverage fair value of options. For restricteath
grants, fair value is determined as the averageepof the Company’s stock on the date of granwitifdpased compensation expens
included in selling, general and administrative enges. The determination of fair value of stbeked payment awards on the date of |
using an optiorpricing model is affected by our stock price aslveal by assumptions regarding a number of subjgatariables. The
variables include, but are not limited to, the etpd stock price volatility over the term of theaads, and actual and projected employee :
option exercise behaviors.

The expected terms of the options are based owahi@hs of historical and expected future emplogeercise behavior. The rigkee interes
rate is based on the U.S. Treasury rates at tleeadajrant with maturity dates approximately edoahe expected life at grant date. Volat
is based on historical and expected future vaiatdf the Company stock. The Company has not historically issugddividends and do
not expect to in the future. Forfeitures for boftion and restricted stock grants are estimateieatime of the grant and revised in subsec
periods if actual forfeitures differ from estimates

If factors change and we employ different assunmgtio the determination of the fair value of grantfuture periods, the related compense
expense that we record may differ significantlynirahat we have recorded in the current periods.
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued

Net Income Per Share:Basic and diluted net income per share is compbiedlividing net income by the weighted average nemtd
common shares outstanding and the weighted avemager of dilutive shares outstanding, respectivéfeighted average common st
outstanding for the years ended September 30, 20A2012 were as follows:

Year ended September ! 2013 2012
Net income $ 4,733,84. $ 7,701,19.
Weighted average common sha 12,527,415 12,371,37
Dilutive potential common shares 551,78t 418,79
Weighted average dilutive common shares outstar 13,078,93 12,790,16
Earnings per shar

Basic $ 0.3t $ 0.6z

Diluted $ 0.3¢ $ 0.6(

The calculation of diluted net income per commoarshor the year ended September 30, 2012 excl@88¢b00 potentially dilutive shai
because their effect was anti-dilutive. There wergotentially dilutive shares for the year en8egtember 30, 2013.

Use of Estimates:The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptedha United States
America requires management to make estimates ssutrgtions that affect the reported amounts otassel liabilities, related revenues
expenses and disclosure about contingent assetsahilidies at the date of the financial statensenSignificant estimates include the defe
tax asset valuation allowance, the valuation ofiouentory, rebates related to revenue recognitimal the valuation of lonliwed assets ar
goodwill. Actual results may differ materially frothese estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements:

From time to time, new accounting pronouncemengsissued by the Financial Accounting Standards @oarother standard setting boc
that may have an impact on the Compangccounting and reporting. The Company believet such recently issued accoun
pronouncements and other authoritative guidancefich the effective date is in the future eithéll mot have an impact on its accounting
reporting or that such impact will not be matet@its financial position, results of operationsdacash flows when implemented.

NOTE B — COMMITMENTS AND FACILITIES
Plymouth Facility: The Company leases office and manufacturing fasliin Plymouth, MN for its ongoing operations. iSbperating lea:

as amended expires February 28, 2015. The Conglaoyeases various pieces of office equipment. tifi®years ended September 30, :
and 2012, total rent expense was $450,000 and B3@6espectively.
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NOTE B — COMMITMENTS AND FACILITIES - Continued

At September 30, 2013, the future minimum leasem@ts required under operating lease agreemenésdodiows:

Year ending September ; Operating leas:
2014 $ 333,22

2015 139,43:

Total minimum lease payments $ 472,65

NOTE C — SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The Board of Directors may, by resolution, estdbfiem the undesignated shares different classegnes of shares and may fix the rele
rights and preferences of shares in any classr@sseThe Company is authorized to issue 500 shafrereferred stock and 50,000,000 sk
of common stock at $.01 par value. The Companynbassued any shares of preferred stock.

Stock-Based CompensationThe Company’s stockased compensation plans are administered by thgp&usation Committee of the Bo
of Directors, which selects persons to receive de/and determines the number of shares subjecdo @vard and the terms, conditic
performance measures and other provisions of tlaecaw

Stock Options: The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricingehto estimate fair value of stoblased awards. The Company did
grant stock options during the year ended SepterBber2013. The following weighted average assuwongtiwere used for stock optic
granted for the year ended September 30, 2012:

2012
Expected volatility 82%
Expected life (in years 6
Expected dividend 0%
Risk-free interest rat .9C%
Weightec-average gra-date fair value $ 4.1z

The Company has two stock option plans which assl @ an incentive for directors, officers, ancepot#tmployees. The directerplan wa
terminated in February of 2010 and 67,500 authdrizet unissued shares were removed from the fgptions are generally granted at
market values determined on the date of grant asting normally occurs over a three to fiyear period. The maximum contractual ter
normally six years. However, options granted t@ctors have a one year vesting period and a sk gentractual term. Shares issued 1
exercise of a stock option are new shares. Théoye@ plan has 646,879 shares available for isswé September 30, 2013. As of Septer
30, 2013, $1,916,898 of total unrecognized comp@arsaxpense related to nmested awards is expected to be recognized ovezighte(
average period of approximately 3.9 years. Thebmrof options vested during the year ended Sepe®®, 2013 was 177,312 with a t
fair value of $699,602 and a weighted average gtat fair value of $3.95. The Company recordéated compensation expense for the y
ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 of $753,727 4n@, &0, respectively. There were 114,417 stodloop that were exercised usin
cashless method of exercise. The intrinsic vafugptions exercised during the year ended Septei3®e2013 and 2012 was $1,185,501
$672,900, respectively.
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NOTE C — SHAREHOLDERS'’ EQUITY — Continued
Option transactions under these plans during the geded September 30, 2013 and 2012 are summasZetiows:

Number o0 Weighted averag Weighted

shares exercise price average fair valt
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 1,191,65 $ 2.74

Grantec 17,00( 5.5¢ $ 412
Cancelled or Forfeite (1,000 6.3€
Exercised (178,48)) 1.11
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 1,029,171 $ 3.07

Granted - - -
Cancelled or Forfeite (9,600 5.71
Exercised (156,057 1.97
Outstanding at September 30, 2013 863,51¢ $ 3.24

The following table summarizes information concegnoptions exercisable under the Options Plans at:

Weighted average

remaining contractual life Weighted avera¢

Year ende( Exercisabl (years) exercise prict
September 30, 201 711,80: 4.17 $ 2.7¢
September 30, 201 700,14 4.98 $ 4.7¢

The following table summarizes information conceghoptions currently outstanding at:

Weighted
average Weighted
remaining average  Aggregate
Number contractual life exercise intrinsic
Year Endec outstandin (years) price value
September 30, 201 863,51 4.09 $ 3.2¢ $8,801,77!
September 30, 201 1,029,171 4.78 $ 3.07 $2,101,54

Restricted Stock: The Company’s 2007 Stock Compensation Plan peraits Compensation Committee to grant other stomge
awards. The Company awards to key employeesatestrstock grants that vest over one to five years.

Restricted stock transactions during the year esdgdember 30, 2013 and 2012 are summarized asvioll

Number o Weighted average
shares  grant date fair valt

Unvested shares at September 30, - 8,66¢ $ 2.5¢
Granted 359,00( 5.1C
Vested (4,332 2.5¢

Unvested shares at September 30, - 363,33t 5.07
Granted 9,09( 5.5C
Vested (75,13¢) 4.9t
Forfeited (5,000 5.1C

Unvested shares at September 30, 2013 292,29( $ 5.11
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NOTE C — SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY — Continued

The Company repurchased a total of 18,786 sharesrafommon stock at an average price of $11.&8mmection with payment of taxes u|
the vesting of restricted stock previously issuedrnployees for the year ended September 30, Z0i8.Company repurchased a total of 1
shares of our common stock at an average prics @3%$in connection with payment of taxes upon tastmg of restricted stock previou
issued to employees for the year ended Septembe03Q.

Employee Stock Purchase PlanThe Clearfield, Inc. 2010 Employee Stock Purchdsa P'Stock Plan”)allows participating employees
purchase shares of the Compangbmmon stock at a discount through payroll dédnst The Stock Plan is available to all employsgsiec
to certain eligibility requirements. Terms of tBock Plan provide that participating employees marghase the Compargytommon stock ¢
a voluntary after tax basis. Employees may puretihe Companyg common stock at a price that is no less tharativer of 85% of the fa
market value of one share of common stock at tiginbég or end of each stock purchase period os@hdhe Stock Plan is carried out in six
month phases, with phases beginning on July 1 andaly 1 of each calendar year. For the phaseetit®d on December 31, 2012 and
30, 2013, employees purchased 18,000 and 17,59&sshiaspectively, at a price of $3.82 per shavetlie phase that ended on Decembe
2011 and June 30, 2012, employees purchased 14r2677,662 shares, respectively, at a price of4$&r@l $4.09 per share, respectively.
of September 30, 2013, the Company has withheldoappately $48,961 from employees participatingttie phase that began on Jul
2013. After the employee purchase on June 30,, 2113245 shares of common stock were availabléutare purchase under the Stock Plan

NOTE D — INCOME TAXES

Realization of net operating loss cafoyward and other deferred tax temporary differsnaee contingent upon future taxable earnings.
Company’s deferred tax asset was reviewed for eggdedilization by assessing the available positive aedative factors surrounding
recoverability. During the fourth quarter of fisgeear 2012, the Company reversed a substantigiopoof the deferred tax assealuatior
allowance in the amount of $3,518,000 after consideall available positive and negative eviderineluding our historical operating resu
current financial condition, and potential futuexdble income. This represented a change in atoguestimate and increased our net inc
by that amount as well and contributed $0.28 phknetli share for the period. The total valuatioloveénce released during the year er
September 30, 2012 was approximately $5.1 million.

The Company has a remaining valuation allowanceappiroximately $975,000 relating to state net ojpegaloss carryforwards we do 1
expect to utilize. Based upon all available evadgrihe Company believes that the existing valnatowance is appropriate and should nc
adjusted for the current year. Approximately $80,0f the valuation allowance is short term and1$880 is longterm, against its remaini
deferred tax assets. The Company will continuasgess the assumptions used to determine the awiout valuation allowance and n
adjust the valuation allowance in future periodsduhon changes in assumptions of estimated futemerie and other factors. If the valua
allowance is reduced, we would record an incomebtnefit in the period the valuation allowancedduced. If the valuation allowance
increased, we would record additional income tgpease.
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NOTE D — INCOME TAXES — Continued
Significant components of deferred income tax asaptl liabilities are as follows at:

September 3 September 3

2013 2012
Current deferred income tax assets (liabiliti
Inventories $ 262,16: $ 180,63
Accrued expenses and reser 657,12! 160,80¢
Prepaid expenst (23,42 (158,25
Net operating loss carry forwards and cre 3,813,42! 1,480,20;
4,709,28 1,663,39
Valuation allowance (94,179 (171,919
Net current deferred tax asset $ 461511 $ 149147
Long-term deferred income tax assets (liabilitie
Intangibles $ (15,779 $ (7,719
Property and equipment depreciat 86,29 75,53
Net operating loss carry forwards and cre 2,096,58. 7,637,591
Stock based compensati 66,72: 53,93
Accrued expenses and reser 7,444 13,33¢
Goodwill (549,609 (471,08
1,691,65: 7,301,58
Valuation allowance (881,079 (803,339
Net long-term deferred tax asset $ 810,570 $ 6,498,25i

As of September 30, 2013 the current income tarip@was approximately $81,000. As of SeptembeRB02, the current income tax
receivable was $2,000.

As of September 30, 2013, the Company had U.Srdédet operating loss (NOL) carry forwards of appmately $14.3 million. The U.
federal net operating loss carry forwards will egpgn 2023through 2028 if not utilized. As of September 3013, the Company had state
operating loss carry forwards of approximately $18illion. The state net operating loss carry fars will expire in 2014 through 2022 if |
utilized. As of September 30, 2013, the remainirgduation allowance of approximately $975,000 edato state net operating |
carryforwards that we do not expect to utilize.

The Company completed an Internal Revenue CodeoBe®82 analysis of the loss carry forwards in 2608 determined then that all of
companys loss carry forwards are utilizable and not resd under Section 382. The Company has not updeteSection 382 analy:
subsequent to 2009 and does not believe thereldfemreany events subsequent to 2009 that would inipa@nalysis.

Deferred tax assets relating to equity compensdtire been reduced to reflect tax deductions irexof previously recorded tax bent
through the year ended September 30, 2013. Owrdednd state NOL carry forwards referenced abmv&eptember 30, 2013 inclt
approximately $1.8 million and $384,000, respedyivd income tax deductions in excess of previousigorded tax benefits for equity ba
awards. Although these additional tax deductiorsraflected in NOL carry forwards referenced ahdhe related tax benefit will not
recognized until the deductions reduce taxes payabl
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NOTE D — INCOME TAXES — Continued

Accordingly, since the tax benefit does not redtiee Companys current taxes payable in 2013, these tax berafisnot reflected in tl
Company's deferred tax assets presented above.takhbenefit ofapproximately $637,000 at September 30, 2013 etlaiethese exce
deductions will be reflected as a credit to adddgigpaid-in capital when recognized.

The following is a reconciliation of the federahtsttory income tax rate to the consolidated eféectax rate as a percent of gae-income fa
the following periods ended:

September 3  September 3

2013 2012
Federal statutory ra 34% 34%
State income taxe 1% 1%
Permanent difference 2% 4%
Change in valuation allowance - (115%)
Tax rate 37% (7€%)

Components of the income tax expense (benefitasfellows for the periods ended:

September 3 September 3

2013 2012

Current:
Federa $ 180,70t $ 87,19:
State 58,42 24,63’
239,12 111,83(

Deferred:
Federa 2,455,01! (3,087,27)
State 109,03( (348,854
2,564,04! (3,436,12)
Income tax expense (benefit) $ 2,803,17. $ (3,324,29)

The Company is required to recognize the finarat@ement benefit of a tax position only after dataing that the relevant tax authority
would more likely than not sustain the positioddaling an audit. For tax positions meeting the enlikely than not threshold, the amount
recognized in the financial statements is the ktrenefit that has a greater than 50 percenthitet! of being realized upon ultimate
settlement with the relevant tax authority. ThenPany applies the interpretation to all tax posgidor which the statute of limitations
remained open. The Company had no liability fenrecognized tax benefits and did not recognizeiateyest or penalties during the years
ended September 30, 2013 or 2012.

The Company is subject to income taxes in the fé@eral jurisdiction, and various state jurisdinBo Tax regulations within each jurisdict
are subject to the interpretation of the relatedléavs and regulations and require significant megt to apply. With few exceptions,

Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, staté local, income tax examinations by tax authlewifor fiscal years ending prior
1998. We are generally subject to U.S. federalsaaté tax examinations for all tax years sinceB1d® to our net operating loss carryforw.
and the utilization of the carryforwards in yeat#l ®pen under statute. The Company changedisisaf year in 2007 from March 31
September 30.
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NOTE E — CONCENTRATIONS

Suppliers: The Company purchases critical components for oodyxts, including injection molded parts and canoes from third partie
some of whom are single- or limitestburce suppliers. If any of our suppliers are lmab ship critical components, we may be unab
manufacture and ship produdtsour distributors or customers. If the pricettofse components increases for any reason, ogseteupplie!
are unable or unwilling to deliver, we may havdibtal another source, which could result in intetiops, increased costs, delays, loss of :
and quality control problems.

Customers: Customers A and B comprised approximately 23% &%, respectively, of total sales for the fiscal yended September .
2013. Customer B comprised approximately 22% télteales for the fiscal year ended September B@2.2 Additionally, Customer
accounted for approximately 57% and 17% of accotgusivable at September 30, 2013 and Septemb@032@, respectively.

NOTE F — EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company maintains a contributory 401(k) prafiiaring benefit plan, whereby eligible employees rantribute a portion of the
earnings, not to exceed annual amounts allowedruhddnternal Revenue Code. The Company match@%lof the first 3% and 50% of
next 2% of the participant’s eligible compensattbat is contributed by the participant. The Comparcontributions under this plan w
$290,652 and $283,600 for the years ended Septe30b2013 and September 30, 2012, respectively

ITEMO9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH A CCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.

None.
ITEM9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management carried out an evaluatioder the supervision and with the participatidrthe Companys Chief Executiv
Officer and the Company’s Chief Financial Officdrtbe effectiveness of the design and operatiothefCompanys disclosure controls a
procedures (as such term is defined in Rule I5@) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nasnded) as of September 30, 2013. E
upon that evaluation, the Company’'s Chief Executdfficer and the Company’s Chief Financial Officemncluded that the Compasy’
disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control overFinancial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingraaisitaining an adequate system of internal comvel financial reporting, as such terr
defined in Rule 1345(f) of the Exchange Act. Under the supervision avith the participation of our management, inatgdour Chie
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officave conducted an evaluation of the effectivenessuwfinternal control over financ
reporting based on the frameworklimernal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifnthe
Treadway Commission. Based on that evaluation,agement concluded that, as of September 30, 2@k3nternal control over financi
reporting was effective.
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This annual report does not include an attestatmort of the Company’ registered public accounting firm regarding ingrcontrol ove
financial reporting. Management’s report was niijsct to attestation by the Compasyegistered public accounting firm pursuant tesub
the Securities and Exchange Commission that péh@i€Company to provide only management’s repathimannual report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

No changes in the Compé’s internal control over financial reporting occuriduring the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013 thave materiall
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeaf, the Company'’s internal control over financigporting.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART III .

ITEM10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CO RPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information required by Item 10 to be included iar d®Proxy Statement for our 2014 Annual Meeting b®holders (the2014 Prox
Statement”)which will be filed with the Securities and Exch@ngommission pursuant to Regulation 14A within 8i29s after the end of t
fiscal year for which this report is filed, is impmrated herein by reference into this section.

ITEM11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 to be includiethe 2014 Proxy Statement, is incorporated hdvgireference into this section.

ITEM12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFI CIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 12 to be includethe 2014 Proxy Statement, is incorporated hdrgireference into this section.
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TR ANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 to be includiethe 2014 Proxy Statement, is incorporated hdvgireference into this section.
ITEM 14 . PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVIC ES

The information required by Item 14 to be includethe 2014 Proxy Statement, is incorporated hdrgireference into this section.
PART IV.

ITEM 15 . EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCH EDULES

€) Documents filed as part of this répor
(1) Financial Statements.

The financial statements of Clearfield, Inc. atediherewith under Iltem 8. “Financial Statementd &upplementary Datadf this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(2) Certain financial statement scheduiese been omitted because they are not requirgtdapplicable, or the requir
information is provided in other financial statertgar the notes to the financial statements.

(b) Exhibits.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Clearfield, Inc. and John P. Hill.

Form 8-K dated December 16, 2008

Incorporated
Number Description by Reference to
3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation, of APA Optitsc. (n/k/a Clearfield| Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant’'s Quarterly Report jon
Inc.) dated November 3, 1983 and Articles of Ameadhdated DecembéForm 10-Q for the quarter ended September 3(
9, 1983, July 30, 1987, March 22, 1989, SeptemBerl 294 and Augugt2000
17, 2000
3.1(a) Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorporatidated August 25, 2004Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant’'s Quarterly Report jon
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Septemben 3(
2004
3.2 Bylaws, as amended and restated effective Febaigrg999 of Clearfield, Exhibit 3.2 to Registrant's Annual Report pn
Inc. (f/k/a APA Optics, Inc.) Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended Maich
31,1999
10.1 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors Exhibit 10.3a to Registrant’'s Annual Report jon
Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended Mafch
31,1994
*10.2 Insurance agreement by and between the Registmdnmil K. Jain Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant’'s Annual Report pn
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March B1,
1990
*10.3 Form of Agreement regarding Indemnification of Bies and Officers Exhibit 10.7 to Registrant’s Annual Report pn
with Messrs. Jain, Olsen, Ringstad, Roth, Von Waidd Zuckerman Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 381,
2002
104 Lease Agreement dated May 31, 2006 between BassRaglty, LLC and Exhibit 10.14 to Registrant’'s Annual Report jon
Clearfield, Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March B1,
2006.
*10.5 2007 Stock Compensation Plan, as amended Appendix A to the Registrant’s Proxy Statemgnt
for the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders
held on February 24, 2011.
*10.6 Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008 by letveen Exhibit 10.26 to Registrant’s Current Report|on
Clearfield, Inc. and Cheryl P. Beranek. Form 8-K dated December 16, 2008
*10.7 Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008 by laetveen Exhibit 10.27 to Registrant? Current Report on
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Incorporated

ent
EIsS

Number Description by Reference to
*10.8 Clearfield, Inc. Code 280G Tax Gross Up Paymentn PRdopted| Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Current Report
November 18, 2010 Form 8-K dated November 18, 2010.
10.9 Clearfield, Inc. 2010 Employee Stock Purchase Plan Appendix A to the Registrant’s Proxy Statem
for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Sharehold
held on February 25, 2010.
10.10 First Amendment to Lease and First Amendment tstFmended angdExhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report
Restated License Agreement dated March 28, 2013ary betweemnForm 8-K dated March 28, 2013.
Clearfield, Inc. and Bass Lake Realty LLC
23.1 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP *
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer (principaéxecutive officer) **
Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of tlubh&nge Act
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer (principafinancial officer)| **
Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of tlubh&nge Act
32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Pripel Financial Officef **
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350
101.INS XBRL Instance Document **
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema *x
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase **
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Labels Linkbase *x
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase **
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase **

* Indicates a management contract or compensalaryor arrangement.

** Indicates exhibit filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(t)e Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regiisthas duly caused this repoi
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

Clearfield, Inc.

Date: November 21, 2013 /sl Cheryl P. Berane
Cheryl P. Beranek
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpwhe following persons
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities@nthe dates indicated.
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Each person whose signature appears below hereisyitcbes and appoints Cheryl P. Beranek and D&téetog and each of them, as his true
and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with fullper of substitution, to sign on his behalf, indivédly and in each capacity stated below, all
amendments to this Form 10-K and to file the samit, all exhibits thereto and any other documentsannection therewith, with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, granting umitbattorneys-in-fact and agents full power andhaxity to do and perform each and every
act and thing requisite and necessary to be doardrabout the premises, as fully and to all irstamid purposes as each might or could do in
person, hereby ratifying and confirming each aat #aid attorneys-in-fact and agents may lawfuliyod cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Signatures Title Date

[s/ Cheryl P. Beranek President, Chief Executive Officer and Dires November 21, 201
Cheryl P. Berane (principal executive officer

[s/ Daniel Herzog Chief Financial Officer (principal financial a November 21, 201
Daniel Herzoc accounting officer

s/ Ronald G. Roth Director November 21, 201
Ronald G. Rott

[s/ John G. Reddan Director November 21, 201

John G. Redda

/sl Stephen L. Zuckerman M.D. Director November 21, 201
Stephen L. Zuckerme

/s/ Donald R. Hayward Director November 21, 201
Donald R. Haywar

/s/ Charles N. Hayssen Director November 21, 201
Charles N. Haysse
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We have issued our report dated November 21, 20it3respect to the financial statements includethe Annual Report of Clearfield, Inc.
Form 10K for the year ended September 30, 2013. We hecebgent to the incorporation by reference of sajubrt in the Registratic
Statements of Clearfield, Inc. on Forms S-8 (Fite B33-44500, File No. 333-136828, File No. 3338®4, File No. 33366495 and File N
333-173793)

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
November 21, 2013



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Cheryl P. Beranek, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Clearfield, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doescantain any untrue statement of a material facbroit to state a material f
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteotircumstances under which such statements macde, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this annual re

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,cdhner financial information included in this amhueport, fairly represent in
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the registrantfasmd for, the periods presente(
this annual repor

The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsituleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this annual reasrbeing preparec

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpor, or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repodimnd the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting princij

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtinis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contral$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; an

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsanternal control financial reporting that oced during the registrarst’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registraridurth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyadrg that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s control over financial reportin

The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controlerofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinancia
information; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesamagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registran’'s internal controls over financial reportir

November 21, 201

/sl Cheryl P. Berane
Cheryl P. Berane

Chief Executive Office
(Principal executive officel




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Daniel Herzog, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Clearfield, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doescaptain any untrue statement of a material facbroit to state a material f
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteotircumstances under which such statements macde, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this annual re

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,cdhner financial information included in this amhueport, fairly represent in
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the registrantfasmd for, the periods presente(
this annual repor

The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsituleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this annual reqasrbeing preparec

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr; or caused such internal control over finahi@orting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repodimnd the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting princij

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registiadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtibis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contmal$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; an

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regisainternal control financial reporting that oceed during the registrarst’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registraridurth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyadrg that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s control over financial reportin

The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitasmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controlerofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinancia
information; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesamagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registran’'s internal controls over financial reportir

November 21, 201

/s/ Daniel Herzog

Daniel Herzoc

Chief Financial Office

(Principal financial and accounting office



Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION

The undersigned certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.CO1B4&t:

1. The accompanying Annual Report on FormKl®@er the period ended September 30, 2013 fully glies with the requirements
Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchakgeof 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mess, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of
Company.

Date: November 21, 201

/s/ Cheryl P. Berane
Cheryl P. Berane
Chief Executive Office

/s/ Daniel Herzog
Daniel Herzoc
Chief Financial Office



